

3. The authority of the Commission shall not extend to the review of any of the categories of buildings, structures, or external architectural features in the District set out in items one through seven of Section 8a of Chapter 40C, as amended.

4. The Commission shall have all the powers and perform all the duties conferred and imposed on Historic District Commissions by the General Laws of the Commonwealth.

5. In accordance with Section 14 of General Laws, Chapter 40C, as amended, the Commission shall have the powers and duties of a Historical Commission, as provided by General Laws, Chapter 40, Section 8D.

6. The Commission shall adopt rules and regulations for the conduct of its business not inconsistent with the provisions of General Laws, Chapter 40C as amended, and may subject to appropriation, employ clerical and technical assistants or consultants and may accept money gifts and expend same for such purposes.

7. In case any section, paragraph, or part of this by-law be for any reason declared invalid or unconstitutional by any court of last resort, every other section, paragraph, or part shall continue in full force and effect.

I hereby certify that the foregoing by-law and map were adopted by the Town of Hamilton under Article 17 of the Warrant for the Annual Town Meeting held March 6, 1972, and approved by Robert H. Quinn, Attorney General on October 25, 1972, Published in the Hamilton-Wenham Chronicle December 20, 27, 1972 and January 3, 1973.

ATTEST: Francis H. Whipple - Town Clerk

CHAPTER XXXII

HAMILTON AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST

SECTION 1: Authority/establishment

Pursuant to G.L. c. 44, § 55C, there is hereby established an affordable housing trust fund to be known as the Hamilton Affordable Housing Trust Fund ("Trust"), which shall be subject to the supervision of the board of selectmen of the town of Hamilton. Said Trust shall be governed by a board of trustees.

SECTION 2: Purposes

The Board of Trustees of the Hamilton Affordable Housing Trust shall:

- A. Exercise its powers and perform its duties for the purpose of investigating and implementing alternatives for the provision of and providing affordable housing for persons of low and moderate income (as defined in G.L. c. 44 § 2), and
- B. Receive and expend funds for the acquisition, rehabilitation, renovation, construction, financing or refinancing of property within the Town of Hamilton for the purposes of providing affordable housing and to further provide mechanisms to ensure such use.

SECTION 3: Composition

The Trust shall have five (5) Trustees at all times and the Board of Selectmen shall appoint the Trustees. At all times at least one of the Trustees shall be a member of the Board of Selectmen and one Trustee shall be the Hamilton Town Manager, who shall have the power to vote. In making such appointments, the Board of Selectmen shall endeavor to provide a broad-based membership including legal, banking, financial and real estate professionals, other members of the local business community and affordable housing advocates.

SECTION 4: Term of Office

Upon establishment of the Trust, the Board of Selectmen shall forthwith appoint (2) Trustees whose initial terms shall expire on the first June 30 after appointment and (3) Trustees whose initial terms shall expire on the second June 30 after appointment. Thereafter, the Trustees shall be appointed for a two (2) year term commencing on July 1 and ending on June 30 or until such time as a successor is appointed, should said appointment be delayed.

SECTION 5: Organization

The Trustees shall annually elect one Trustee to serve as Chairperson. Sub-committees and/or ad hoc task related committees may be created by a majority vote of the Trustees to carry out the purposes of the Trust.

SECTION 6: Filling of vacancies

In the event of a vacancy in the position of Trustee, the appointment shall be made in the same manner as the original appointment.

SECTION 7: Meetings, quorum

Meetings of the Trust shall be held at the call of the Chairperson or any two (2) Trustees. Four (4) Trustees shall constitute a quorum and a majority vote of the full membership shall be required to approve any motion.

SECTION 8: Powers and duties

In addition to the powers and duties specified in G.L. c. 44, § 55C, the Board of Trustees shall have the following additional powers and duties:

- A. To establish criteria and/or qualifications for affordable housing recipients and make expenditures in accordance with the Trust's above-stated purposes.
- B. To enter into an agreement with the Town of Hamilton, wherein the Board of Trustees shall undertake to make to the Town, annual payments in lieu of taxes in connection with any real property acquired and owned by the Board; entering into such agreement shall not be mandatory but shall be at the discretion of the Board of Trustees.

SECTION 9: Powers Reserved by the Board of Selectmen

The Board of Trustees shall not have the following powers which are reserved and remain with the Board of Selectmen, for the purposes of this bylaw only and not all property acquisitions, and are subject to approval by a majority vote of the Board of Selectmen:

- A. The acquisition or disposition of real property.
- B. The expenditure of trust funds for the acquisition of real property.
- C. The borrowing of money and the mortgaging and pledging of trust assets.

SECTION 10: Treasurer-Collector as custodian

The Treasurer-Collector shall be the custodian of the Trust's funds and shall maintain separate accounts and records for said funds. He or she shall invest the funds in the manner authorized by M.G.L. c. 44, §§ 55, 55A and 55B. Any income or proceeds received from the investment of funds shall be credited to and become part of the Trust.